
West Plains R-VII Board of Education 
Tax Rate Hearing 

5:00 P.M.  August 21, 2012 

Central Administration Office 

AGENDA 

 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 

III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

IV. REGULAR AGENDA 

A. Tax Rate Calculation  

B. Public Comment  

C. Setting of Tax Rate   

V. ADJOURNMENT 

  



Percentage 1.60% 7.63%

Prior Year Prior Year

Based On Based on 2nd

$6,256,410New Construction A.V.: 

Revenue from New Construction: $227,783.38

New Revenue

Difference $82,159.93 $368,810.48

Revenue 5,205,035.13 5,205,035.13

Prior Year 5,122,875.20 4,836,224.65

2nd Prior Year

Total $5,205,035.13 $5,122,875.20 $4,836,224.65

Fund 1 5,205,035.13 5,122,875.20 4,836,224.65

Fund 2 0.00 0.00 0.00

2012 2011 2010

Fund 2 $0.0000 $0.0000 $0.0000

Total $3.6408 $3.6393 $3.6536

Budgeted Revenue (Based on 100% Collection Rate) 

Current Year Prior Year

2012 2011 2010

Fund 1 $3.6408 $3.6393 $3.6536

Current Year Prior Year 2nd Prior Year

Tax Rate

Assessed Valuation

Prior Year

2011

$106,751,090

$34,014,310

Current Year

2012

$108,528,110

$34,435,940

Real Estate

Personal Property

West Plains R-VII School District

Linda Y. Collins, Secretary

Jimmy E. Thompson, President

West Plains R-VII School District

Board of Education

Total A.V. $142,964,050

A hearing will be held at 5:00 p.m., August 21, 2012, at the West Plains R-VII School 

Administrative Office, 613 West First Street, West Plains, MO, at which time citizens may be 

heard on the property tax proposed to be set by the West Plains R-VII School District.  The tax 

rates are set to produce the revenues which the budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012 

shows to be required from the property tax.  Each tax rate is determined by dividing the amount 

of revenue needed by the current assessed valuation.  The result is multiplied by 100 so the tax 

rate will be expressed in cents per $100 valuation.

2012 Tax Rate Hearing Noctice

West Plains, Missouri

$140,765,400

2nd Prior Year

2010

$98,195,580

$34,173,170

$132,368,750



 “Maximizing educational opportunities while creating productive citizens.” 

 

West Plains Schools Board of Education 
Regular Session Meeting 
5:15 P.M.  August 21, 2012 

Central Administration Office 
AGENDA 

I. OPEN SESSION – for a motion to go into closed session 
II. CLOSED (EXECUTIVE) SESSION 

A. Adjournment to Closed Executive Session 5:15 p.m. 
1. Pursuant to Section 610.021.1 Legal Matters  
2. Pursuant to Section 610.021.2 Real Estate Matters  
3. Pursuant to Section 610.021.3 Personnel Matters  

B. Adjournment from Closed Executive Session 
III. CALL TO ORDER – The regular Session of the School Board meeting will be called to 

order at 6:00 P.M.  
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE –  
V. ROLL CALL AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
VI. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
VII. CONSENT AGENDA - Items considered routine in nature to be voted on in one motion 

to conserve time.  If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the Consent 
Agenda and will become the first item under the Regular Agenda  
A. Approval of Board Minutes From June 19, July 6, 2012 
B. Payment of Bills 
C. Monthly Finance Report 
D. Approval Request for resignations or terminations: 

1. Jackie Thornton  2. Orvie Weisbrod 
E. Approval will be requested for the employment of individuals as recommended by the 

Superintendent of Schools – Substitutes 
VIII. REGULAR AGENDA 

A. Previous Business for Approval, Discussion or Information Only 
1. MSBA Conference (September 27 – September 30)  

B. New Business for Approval, Discussion or Information Only  
1. Food Service Update 
2. Preliminary Annual Performance Report 
3. 8th grade EOC Policy Discussion 
4. Readopt Financial Disclosure Policy BBFA  
5. Capital Improvements Update 
6.  Superintendent Report  

IX. ADJOURNMENT 
X. ADJOURN TO ADDITIONAL CLOSED (EXECUTIVE) SESSION – this session is 

reserved to complete any unfinished business from the closed (executive) session from the 
beginning of the meeting.  

XI. ADJOURNMENT 
*Next Board Meeting Scheduled for September 18, 2012, at 5:00 P.M. 



Dr. Boyer will have our Tax Rate Hearing at 5:00 and our regular scheduled Board meeting at  
 5:15.  Also our audit will start on Monday August 20th  

 
IV. CLOSED (EXECUTIVE) SESSION 

1. Pursuant to Section 610.021.1 Legal Matters – I have a legal question and would like to get the Board’s 
thoughts before proceeding. 
2. Pursuant to Section 610.021.2 – Real Estate Matters – We will have an update on the ECSE grant. 3. 
Pursuant to Section 610.021.3 – Personnel Matters – We will have a investigative report for you regarding 
personnel along with a couple of resignations.  

 
VI. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Our pledge will be led by our administrative team.  
 
IX. CONSENT AGENDA –  

D.  Approval Request for resignations or terminations: 
Jackie Thornton – Aid at the Middle School 2. Orvie Weisbrod – bus driver 

E.  Approval will be requested for the employment of individuals as recommended by the  
 Superintendent of Schools: Substitutes , bus substitute – Eddie Cooley  

        
X.   REGULAR AGENDA 

A. Previous Business for Approval, Discussion or Information Only   

  1. MSBA Conference (September 27 – September 30) – I just want to remind everyone   
 of the upcoming MSBA Fall Conference 
   

B.  New Business for Approval, Discussion or Information Only  
  

1. Food Service Update – Calva will be here to give us an update on the new federal food service 
requirements. – I would also like to take some time to recognize Calva for her excellent service. 
2. Preliminary Annual Performance Report – Dr. Thompson present the Board our current performance 
data – hint – IT LOOKS AWESOME!!!!! 
3. 8th grade EOC Policy Discussion – We will discuss how DESE is defining the new EOC Algebra I 
credit for 8th grade students.  There is no formal policy drafted at this point. 
4. Readopt Financial Disclosure Policy BBFA – as per MSBA recommendation, we need to readopt the 
policy – this will allow you to fill out the short form for the Missouri Ethics Commission.  We will place this 
on our April agenda and will readopt it when we swear in the Board.  

 5. Capital Improvements Update – Dr. Mulford will have an update of all of our capital improvements  
  along with pictures of the work that has been done this summer.  You will read in the building principal’s  
  report of how clean our facilities are.  Our custodial and maintenance crew do a fantastic job and are to be  
  commended for the excellent service to our kids. 

 6.  Superintendent Report - This will provide an opportunity for the Board of Education to be   
  updated on various educational topics and items of interest to West Plains Schools.  

 
XII.   ADJOURN TO ADDITIONAL CLOSED (EXECUTIVE) SESSION – this session is reserved to complete 

any unfinished business from the closed (executive) session from the beginning of the meeting.  
 

It is nothing new or original to say that golf is played one stroke at a time. But it took me many strokes to realize it." ~ Bobby Jones 

 

As a young golfer, Bobby Jones would take unnecessary risks to compensate for an errant shot. Instead of 

conceding one stroke, he would exhaust himself attempting ill-advised shots in an effort to get back to par. As he 

matured, Jones paced himself more evenly and did not expend as much energy trying to make miraculous shots. 

 

As an achievement-oriented leader, I am tempted to accomplish more than I can realistically manage during the 

day. However at my age, I have no choice but to pay attention to my energy level. At the beginning of each day, I 

review my calendar and ask: “What’s the main event?” That’s the one activity where I cannot afford to give 

anything less than my best (a speaking engagement, a key meeting, critical writing time, etc.). I conserve my energy 

at other times during the day to make sure I’m at my peak for this pivotal event. 

 

 
I look forward to seeing everyone on Tuesday night at 5:00.  Thank you for all you do for kids.     



 “Maximizing educational opportunities while creating productive citizens.” 

 

West Plains R-7 Board of Education 
Special Board Meeting – Public Hearing 

12:00 P.M.  July 6, 2012 

Central Administration Office 

Minutes 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER:  President Thompson called the meeting to 

order at 12:05. 

II. ROLL CALL AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM:  Board 

members present:  Jim Thompson, Terry “Bo” Pace, Cindy Tyree, 

Sam Riggs, Lee Freeman and Shawn Rhoads.  Members absent:  

Brian Mitchell.  Also in attendance: Superintendent Czerwonka, 

Assistant Superintendent Mulford and Board Treasurer Luke 

Boyer.   

III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  Mr. Riggs made a motion to approve 

the Agenda as published.  The motion was seconded and voted as 

follows: 

AYE:  Jim Thompson, Terry “Bo” Pace, Cindy Tyree, Sam Riggs, 

Lee Freeman and Shawn Rhoads. 

NAY:  none. 

IV. REGULAR AGENDA 

A. Previous Business for Approval, Discussion or Information Only 

1. Public Hearing for Capital Facilities Lease Financing 

through the Missouri Association of Rural Education to finance 

turf and other improvements to the football field and the 

construction equipping and furnishing of an agricultural and 

career center building and other improvements to the existing 

facilities of the district.  Larry Hart, from LJ Hart gave basic 

information regarding the lease purchase finance.  For this lease 

purchase, L.J. Hart & Co. will be using M.A.R.E. as the 

underwriting agency.  The floor was opened for public comment.  

There were no questions or public comment. 

V. ADJOURNMENT:  At 12:20 Mr. Riggs made a motion to adjourn.   

The motion was seconded and voted as follows: 

AYE:  Jim Thompson, Terry “Bo” Pace, Cindy Tyree, Sam Riggs, Lee 

Freeman and Shawn Rhoads.  NAY:  None. 

 

_______________________ 

Jimmy E. Thompson, President 

 

 

_______________________ 

Luke Boyer, Acting Board Secretary 

 

*Next Board Meeting Scheduled for August 21, 2012 At 5:00 P.M. 



 “Maximizing educational opportunities while creating productive citizens.” 

 

West Plains R-7 Board of Education 
Special Session Meeting 

12:00 P.M. July 6, 2012 

Central Administration Office 

Minutes 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER:  Jim Thompson called the meeting to order at 12:50. 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Board members led the Pledge of 

Allegiance. 

III. ROLL CALL:  Board members present:  Jim Thompson, Terry “Bo” 

Pace, Cindy Tyree, Sam Riggs, Shawn Rhoads, and Lee Freeman.  

Absent:  Brian Mitchell.  Also in attendance:  Superintendent Dr. Fred 

Czerwonka, Dr. John Mulford and Board Treasurer Luke Boyer. 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:   Mr. Thompson requested the Consent 

Agenda be approved as published.  Motion to approve the agenda was 

made by Mr. Pace.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Riggs and voted as 

follows: 

AYE:  Mr. Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, Mr. Riggs, Mr. Rhoads, 

Mr. Freeman.  NAY:  None    

V. CONSENT AGENDA - (Items considered routine in nature to be voted 

on in one motion to conserve time.  If discussion is desired, that item will 

be removed from the Consent Agenda and will become the first item 

under the Regular Agenda  

A. Payment of Bills 

B. Approval will be requested for the employment of individuals as 

recommended by the Superintendent of Schools: 

 Vasiliy V. Fokin – ESL interpreter 

Mr. Riggs made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  The 

motion was seconded by Mrs. Tyree and voted as follows:  AYE:  Mr. 

Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, Mr. Riggs, Mr. Rhoads, Mr. 

Freeman.  NAY:  None    

 

VI. REGULAR AGENDA 

A. New Business for Approval , Discussion or Information Only 

1. Capital Facilities Lease Financing to consider resolution 

authorizing the issuance and sale of $1,522,000 lease certificates 

of participation.  Mr. Pace made a motion for a resolution 

approving a project for West Plains R-VII School District of 

Howell County, Missouri; Approving the issuance of lease 

certificates of participation in the aggregate stated principal 

amount of $1,522,000, in order to provide funds to pay the costs 

of such project; authorizing and approving certain documents in 

connection with the issuance of said certificates; and authorizing 

certain other actions in connection with the issuance of said 

certificates.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Riggs and voted as 

follows:  



 “Maximizing educational opportunities while creating productive citizens.” 

 

AYE:  Mr. Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, Mr. Riggs, Mr. 

Rhoads, Mr. Freeman.  NAY:  None 

2. Summer School and Special Needs Eligible Mileage and 

Application for Transportation State Aid Approval.  Mr. Pace 

made a motion to approve the summer school eligible miles.  The 

motion was seconded by Mr. Rhoads and voted as follows:  

AYE:  Mr. Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, Mr. Riggs, Mr. 

Rhoads, Mr. Freeman.  NAY:  None 

3. Policy 2012AA Update and Approval.  Mrs. Tyree made a 

motion to adopt the updated policy EHB from the 2012 AA 

updates.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Freeman and voted 

as follows:   

AYE:  Mr. Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, Mr. Riggs, Mr. 

Rhoads, Mr. Freeman.  NAY:  None 

4. Superintendent Report.  Dr. Czerwonka reported several 

activities around the district that are intended to improve 

instruction for students. 

VII. ADJOURNMENT:  At 1:20 Mr. Riggs made a motion to adjourn Open 

Session.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Pace and voted as follows: 

AYE:  Mr. Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, Mr. Riggs, Mr. Rhoads, 

and Mr. Freeman.    NAY:  None. 

 

 

 

 

   

_______________________ 

Jimmy E. Thompson, President 

 

 

_______________________ 

 Luke Boyer, Acting Board Secretary 

 

 

 

 

*Next Board Meeting Scheduled for August 21, 2012 At 5:00 P.M. 



 “Maximizing educational opportunities while creating productive citizens.” 

 

West Plains R-7 Board of Education 
Regular Session Meeting 

5:00 P.M. June 19, 2012 

Central Administration Office 

Minutes 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER:  Jim Thompson called the meeting to order at 6:10. 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Dr. Owings and the Administrative Team 

led the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

III. ROLL CALL:  Board members present:  Jim Thompson, Terry “Bo” 

Pace, Cindy Tyree, Sam Riggs, Shawn Rhoads, Brian Mitchell and Lee 

Freeman.  Absent:  None.  Also in attendance:  Superintendent Dr. Fred 

Czerwonka, Dr. John Mulford and Board Secretary Linda Y. Collins. 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:   Mr. Thompson requested the Consent 

Agenda Item E. be amended to add Crystal Collins as a resignation.  

Motion to approve the agenda as amended was made by Mr. Riggs.  The 

motion was seconded by Mr. Mitchell and voted as follows: 

AYE:  Mr. Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, Mr. Riggs, Mr. Rhoads, 

Mr. Freeman and Mr. Mitchell.  NAY:  None    

V. CONSENT AGENDA - (Items considered routine in nature to be voted 

on in one motion to conserve time.  If discussion is desired, that item will 

be removed from the Consent Agenda and will become the first item 

under the Regular Agenda  

A. Approval of Minutes From Meeting May 15 , 2012 and May 29, 2012 

B. Payment of Bills 

C. Monthly Finance Report 

1.  Resolution and Approval of Budget Numbers for 2011-12 

School Years. 

2. Resolution to Renew Annual Lease Purchase and Budget Funds 

3. Approval of 2012-2013 Budget 

4. Approve year-end reports, authorize officials to sign reports, 

and approve other bookkeeping procedures to be in compliance 

with budgetary laws 

5. Approve assurance statement for Public Law 94-142 

6. Approval of Federal Grant Applications 

D. Program Evaluations 

 Professional Development 

 Health & Wellness 

E. Approval Request for Resignations or Terminations: 

 Leslie Clinton 

 Margaret Smith 

 Crystal Collins (amended) 

F. Approval will be requested for the employment of individuals as 

recommended by the Superintendent of Schools: 

 Substitutes 



 “Maximizing educational opportunities while creating productive citizens.” 

 

Mr. Pace made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  The motion 

was seconded by Mr. Rhoads and voted as follows:  AYE:  Mr. 

Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, Mr. Riggs, Mr. Rhoads, Mr. 

Freeman and Mr. Mitchell.  NAY:  None    

 

VI. REGULAR AGENDA 

A. Previous Business for Approval, Discussion or Information Only 

1. Salary Committee Proposal.  Mr. Riggs made a motion to 

approve the following items from the Salary Committee 

Proposal: 

 Allow movement on all schedules 

 Continue full board-paid insurance for all full-time employees 

 Change maximum allowed to buy back any sick days over 100 

days at the end of the school year at $50/day 

 New salary schedule for 2013-2014 new hires.  Base on new 

schedule is $30,000.  Current employees can opt to change to 

new schedule. 

 Remove stipulation of 8 hour graduate credit from current 

salary schedule 

The motion was seconded by Mrs. Tyree and voted as follows: 

AYE:  Mr. Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, Mr. Riggs, Mr. 

Rhoads, Mr. Freeman and Mr. Mitchell.  NAY:  None 

2. Student Handbooks – 2
nd

 Read and Approval.  Mr. Pace made a 

motion to approve the amendments to the student handbooks.  

The motion was seconded by Mr. Rhoads and voted as follows:  

AYE:  Mr. Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, Mr. Riggs, Mr. 

Rhoads, Mr. Freeman and Mr. Mitchell.  NAY:  None 

3. Employee Handbooks – 2
nd

 Read and Approval.  Mrs. Tyree 

made a motion to approve the employee handbooks.  The motion 

was seconded by Mr. Mitchell and voted as follows:  AYE:  Mr. 

Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, Mr. Riggs, Mr. Rhoads, Mr. 

Freeman and Mr. Mitchell.  NAY:  None 

B.  New Business for Approval , Discussion or Information Only 

1. Fund 1 to 4 Transfer.  Mr. Riggs made a motion to approve the 

maximum transfer allowed by DESE for the purpose of 

completing facility improvements as outlined in the district’s 

capital improvement plan.  The motion was seconded by Mr. 

Freeman and voted as follows:  

AYE:  Mr. Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, Mr. Riggs, Mr. 

Rhoads, Mr. Freeman and Mr. Mitchell.  NAY:  None 

2. Designation of Karen Sholes as ESL, Homeless and Migrant 

Student Contact.  Mr. Pace made a motion to designate Karen 

Sholes as ESL, Homeless and Migrant Student Contact for 2012-

2013 school years.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Rhoads and 

voted as follows:  AYE:  Mr. Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, 



 “Maximizing educational opportunities while creating productive citizens.” 

 

Mr. Riggs, Mr. Rhoads, Mr. Freeman and Mr. Mitchell.  NAY:  

None 

3. Back to School Celebration Monday, August 13, 2012.   

Technology Grant Approval.   

4. Mr. Rhoads made a motion to allow Dr. Julie Thompson to 

proceed with a grant application process which allows West 

Plains High School teachers to demonstrate their desire for 

mobile technologies to use as a regular part of classroom 

instruction.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Freeman and was 

voted as follows:  AYE:  Mr. Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, 

Mr. Riggs, Mr. Rhoads, Mr. Freeman and Mr. Mitchell.  NAY:  

None 

5. Adopt Salary Schedules.  Mr. Riggs made a motion to approve 

all salary schedules for the 2012-2013 school-years.  The motion 

was seconded by Mr. Pace and voted as follows:   

AYE:  Mr. Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, Mr. Riggs, Mr. 

Rhoads, Mr. Mitchell and Mr. Freeman.  NAY:  None. 

6. Set lunch prices for 2012-2013 school years.  Mr. Riggs made a 

motion to set student and adult lunch prices as follows: 

 Full Pay Student Breakfast  $1.50 

 Full Pay Student Lunch       $2.25 

 Full Pay Adult Breakfast     $2.00 

 Full Pay Adult Lunch          $2.75 

                                The motion was seconded by Mrs. Tyree and voted as follows:   

AYE:  Mr. Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, Mr. Riggs, Mr. 

Rhoads, Mr. Mitchell and Mr. Freeman.  NAY:  None. 

7. Boys and Girls Club – Approval of MOU.  Mr. Freeman made a 

motion to approve the Memorandum of Understanding with the 

Boys and Girls Club regarding their use of West Plains 

Elementary School Facilities beginning in January 2013.  The 

motion was seconded by Mr. Mitchell and voted as follows: 

AYE:  Mr. Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, Mr. Riggs, Mr. 

Rhoads, Mr. Mitchell and Mr. Freeman.  NAY:  None. 

8.  Audit Set for August 20
th

  

9. Superintendent Report.  Dr. Czerwonka reported several 

activities around the district that are intended to improve 

instruction for students. 

VII. ADJOURNMENT:  At 6:55 Mr. Pace made a motion Open Session.  The 

motion was seconded by Mr. Mitchell and voted as follows: AYE:  Mr. 

Thompson, Mr. Pace, Mrs. Tyree, Mr. Riggs, Mr. Rhoads, Mr. Mitchell 

and Mr. Freeman.    NAY:  None. 

 

 

 

 

   



 “Maximizing educational opportunities while creating productive citizens.” 

 

_______________________ 

Jimmy E. Thompson, President 

 

 

_______________________ 

 Linda Y. Collins, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

*Next Board Meeting Scheduled for August 21, 2012 At 5:00 P.M. 























Page 1 
 

FILE:  BBFA 

CRITICAL 

  

BOARD MEMBER CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

  

Districts Including No Portion of a First-Class County) 

All directors of the West Plains R-VII School District Board of Education 

shall adhere to the laws regarding conflict of interest and take steps to avoid 

situations where their decisions or actions in their capacity as Board members 

conflict with the mission of the district. 

Sale, Rental or Lease of Personal Property 

Board members and businesses they own may sell, rent or lease personal 

property to the district. However, if the compensation payable to the Board 

member or business exceeds $500 per transaction or $5,000 per year, the 

property may only be sold, rented or leased after the district has given public 

notice and competitively bid the property, and the offer from the Board 

member or Board member's business is the lowest received. 

Sale, Rental or Lease of Real Property (Real Estate) 

Board members and businesses they own may sell, rent or lease real estate to 

the district. Public notice of the transaction must be given prior to execution if 

the payment to the Board member or business exceeds $500 per transaction or 

$5,000 per year. 

Employment 

The district shall not employ Board members for compensation even on a 

substitute or part-time basis. While a Board member remains on the School 

Board, the district will not accept an application of employment from a Board 

member, consider a Board member for employment or decide to employ a 

Board member. Board members may provide services on a volunteer basis. 

Independent Contractor 

Board members may provide services to the district as independent 

contractors through businesses they own. If payment for the service exceeds 

$500 per transaction or $5,000 per year, the district must give public notice 

and competitively bid the service, and the bid or offer of the Board member's 

business must be the lowest received. Businesses owned by Board members 

may provide services on a volunteer basis. 

Businesses That Employ Board Members 



Page 2 
 

Board members may participate in discussions and vote on motions for the 

district to do business with entities that employ the Board member as long as 

the business is not owned by the Board member and the Board member will 

not receive any financial benefit from the transaction. The Board member 

may need to submit a statement of interest as described below. 

Statement of Interest 

If a Board member has a substantial personal or private interest in a decision 

before the Board, before voting the Board member shall provide a written 

report of the nature of the interest to the Board secretary. The written 

statement will be recorded in the minutes. A Board member will have 

complied with this requirement if the Board member has disclosed the interest 

in a personal financial disclosure statement that was filed or amended prior to 

the vote. 

A "substantial interest" exists when the Board member, his or her spouse or 

dependent children, either singularly or collectively, directly or indirectly: 

 1.       Own(s) ten (10) percent or more of any business entity; or 

 2.       Own(s) an interest having a value of $10,000 or more in any business 

entity; or 

3.       Receive(s) a salary, gratuity or other compensation or remuneration of 

$5,000 or more from any individual, partnership, organization or 

association within any calendar year. 

Self-Dealing 

A Board member shall not favorably act on any matter that is specifically 

designed to provide a special monetary benefit to the Board member, his or 

her spouse or dependent children. 

A "special monetary benefit" means being materially affected in a 

substantially different manner or degree than the manner or degree in which 

the public in general will be affected or, if the matter affects only a special 

class of persons, then affected in a substantially different manner or degree 

than the manner or degree in which such class will be affected. 

A Board member will not directly or indirectly influence or vote on a decision 

when the Board member knows the result of the decision may be the 

acceptance by the district of a service or the sale, rental or lease of property to 

the district and the Board member, his or her spouse, dependent children in 

his or her custody or any business with which he or she is associated will 

benefit financially. 

"Business with which a person is associated" means: 



Page 3 
 

 1.       A sole proprietorship owned by the Board member, his or her spouse 

or any dependent children in the person's custody. 

 2.       A partnership or joint venture in which the Board member or spouse is 

a partner, other than as a limited partner of a limited partnership, and 

any corporation or limited partnership in which the Board member is 

an officer or director or of which the Board member, spouse or 

dependent children in the Board member's custody, whether 

singularly or collectively, own more than ten (10) percent of the 

outstanding shares of any class of stock or partnership units. 

 3.       Any trust in which the Board member is the settlor or trustee, or in 

which the Board member, spouse or dependent children, whether 

singularly or collectively, are beneficiaries or holders of a 

reversionary interest of ten (10) percent or more of the corpus of the 

trust. 

Use of Confidential Information 

A Board member shall not use confidential information obtained in the course 

of his or her official capacity in any manner with the intent to result in 

financial gain for himself or herself, any other person or any business. 

Nepotism 

A Board member shall not vote to employ or appoint any person who is 

related within the fourth degree to such Board member by consanguinity or 

affinity. In the event that an individual is recommended for employment or 

appointment and the individual is related within the fourth degree to a Board 

member, the related Board member shall abstain from voting and shall leave 

the room during consideration of the question and the vote. 

"Fourth degree of consanguinity or affinity" means parents, grandparents, 

great-grandparents, great-great-grandparents, spouse, children, siblings, 

grandchildren, great-grandchildren, great-great-grandchildren, nieces or 

nephews, grand-nieces or grand-nephews, aunts or uncles, great-aunts or 

great-uncles, and first cousins by virtue of a blood relationship or marriage. 

Personal Financial Disclosure Statements 

The West Plains R-VII School District Board of Education hereby adopts a 

policy establishing and making public its own method of disclosing financial 

interests of Board members, candidates and specified administrators, in 

accordance with law. Personal financial disclosure statements as described 

below shall be filed with the Missouri Ethics Commission and the West 

Plains R-VII School District Board of Education, on or before May 1 for the 

preceding calendar year, unless the person filing is a Board candidate. 

Candidates must file their reports within 14 days after the last day to file for 

office. The reports will be made available for public inspection and copying 

during normal business hours. 



Page 4 
 

This portion of the policy dealing with the financial interest statement will be 

adopted in an open meeting every other year by September 15. A certified 

copy of this policy/resolution shall be sent to the Missouri Ethics Commission 

within ten (10) days of adoption. 

Board Member Disclosure 

All School Board members and candidates for School Board will disclose in 

writing the following transactions if they occurred during the calendar year: 

1.       Each transaction in excess of $500 per year between the district and the 

individual, or any person related within the first degree by 

consanguinity or affinity to the individual. The statement does not 

need to include compensation received as an employee or payment of 

any tax, fee or penalty due the district. The statement shall include the 

dates and identities of the parties in the transaction. 

"First degree of consanguinity or affinity" includes parents, spouse or 

children by virtue of a blood relationship or marriage. 

 2.       Each transaction in excess of $500 between the district and any 

business entity in which the individual has a substantial interest. The 

statement does not need to include any payment of tax, fee or penalty 

due the district or payment for providing utility service to the district. 

The statement shall include the dates and identities of the parties in 

the transactions. 

"Substantial interest" is ownership by the individual, his or her spouse 

or dependent children, either singularly or collectively, directly or 

indirectly, of ten (10) percent or more of any business entity, or of an 

interest having a value of $10,000 or more, or the receipt of a salary, 

gratuity or other compensation of $5,000 or more from any 

individual, partnership, organization or association within any 

calendar year. 

Superintendent, Chief Purchasing Officer and General Counsel Disclosure 

The superintendent, chief purchasing officer and general counsel, if employed 

full time, will disclose in writing the information required in 1) and 2) above. 

In addition, these employees will disclose the following information for 

themselves, their spouses and dependent children: 

 1.       The name and address of each employer from whom income of $1,000 

or more was received during the year covered by the statement. 

 2.       The name and address of each sole proprietorship the individual 

owned. 

 3.       The name, address and general nature of business conducted by each 

general partnership or joint venture in which he or she was a partner 



Page 5 
 

or participant. 

 4.       The name and address of each partner or coparticipant in the 

partnership or joint venture unless the information is already filed 

with the secretary of state. 

 5.       The name, address and general nature of business of any closely held 

corporation or limited partnership in which the individual owned ten 

(10) percent or more of any class of the outstanding stock or limited 

partners' units. 

 6.       The name of any publicly traded corporation or limited partnership that 

is listed on a regulated stock exchange or automated quotation system 

in which the individual owned two (2) percent or more of any class of 

outstanding stock, limited partnership units or other equity interests. 

 7.       The names and addresses of each corporation for which the individual 

served in the capacity of director, officer or receiver. 

* * * * * * * 

Note:  The reader is encouraged to check the index located at the 

beginning of this section for other pertinent policies and to review 

administrative procedures and/or forms for related information. 

 Adopted:       08/20/2002  

 Revised:        12/20/2005 

 Readopted:    08/17/2004; 08/15/2006; 07/27/2010 

 Cross Refs:    DJC, Bidding Requirements 

DJF, Purchasing 

FEF, Construction Contracts Bidding and Awards 

GBCA, Staff Conflict of Interest 

GBL, Personnel Records 

GCD, Professional Staff Recruiting and Hiring 

GDC, Support Staff Recruiting and Hiring 

JO, Student Records 

  



Page 6 
 

Legal Refs:    Mo. Const. art. VII, § 6 

§§ 105.450 - .458, .461 - .462, .466 - .467, .472, .476 - .492, 

162.261, .391, 168.126, 171.181, RSMo. 

 

West Plains R-VII School District, West Plains, Missouri 

 

© 2005, Missouri School Boards' Association, Registered in U.S. Copyright Office 

For Office Use Only: BBFA-C.2K (09/05)  

 


	1A  Board Packet Title Page
	2A Tax Rate Agenda
	2A2 Tax Rate Hearing Notice 2012
	2A3   Agenda for Aug 21-12
	2B Freds Notes
	3A1 Minutes July 6 2012 Special Mtg Open Public Hearing
	3A2  Minutes July 6 2012 Open Special Mtg
	3A3  Minutes June 19 2012 Open
	3B1  2012 August Warrant Sheet
	3B2  2012 2nd warent sheet
	3E1 Thorton
	3E2 Weisbroad
	3F1  Substitue List
	3F2 Sandra Beach
	5B4  Policy BBFA
	X1  BR Title Page
	XA  Fred
	XB NEW   Mulford Admin  Report 8-16-2012
	XB2 Salary schedules - Hourly 2013-14
	XC Julie Board Report 08_2012 J Thompson
	XD B2 August 2013 Special Board Report
	XF  Seth
	XG  S  Smith MS Admin  Report 8-16-12
	XI Jim
	XJ1   sholes title
	XJ2   board report august, 2012 Karen Sholes
	XJ3 HOMEBOUND SERVICES
	XJ4  HOMEBOUND SERVICES-teacher responsibility
	XJ5  West Plains R-VII 504 manual



